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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Members around

          3  or nearby, I'd ask the Sergeant to round up any

          4  members that may be local and we'll start in about

          5  one minute.

          6                 I suppose we can get started if the

          7  Sergeant is ready. How we doing? Good. Good morning,

          8  I'm Council Member Jim Gennaro, Chair of the New

          9  York City Council Committee on Environmental

         10  Protection. I'd like to welcome you to this hearing

         11  today. Today the Committee will hear testimony on

         12  Intro 474 which is Mayor Bloomberg's Program Bill

         13  which relates to the design and construction of

         14  private water mains.

         15                 The City Code has procedure by which

         16  sewer mains that are built as part of a private

         17  development project eventually become City property.

         18  No such system may be built without a permit from

         19  the Commissioner of DEP, who has to approve plans

         20  for that portion of a project. This is done in order

         21  to ensure uniformity and adequacy in the design and

         22  construction of sewer mains. The City, however, has

         23  not had similar authority over the design and

         24  building of private water mains that would enable to

         25  ensure a safe and continuous supply of water to the
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          2  citizens of the City served by those water mains.

          3  Really, what we're looking for in this bill is kind

          4  of, I guess, parity with the authority that the City

          5  currently has over sewer mains. They would like to

          6  have that kind of control over water mains as well.

          7                 Intro 474 seeks to address this lack

          8  of formal authority by setting forth requirements

          9  and conditions for private water main construction

         10  and by prohibiting the opening of any street boring

         11  a pipe or connecting with the water main or pipe for

         12  water supply purposes except under the direction of

         13  the DEP Commissioner. Under the provisions of Intro

         14  474, these water mains would also ultimately become

         15  City property, thereby, guaranteeing and maintaining

         16  the City's sewer and water supply systems.

         17                 Before I call my first witness, I'd

         18  like to recognize members that we have in attendance

         19  here. We have Council Member Koppell from the Bronx;

         20  Council Member Recchia from Brooklyn; Council Member

         21  Arroyo also from the Bronx. I'd like to thank the

         22  staff of the Committee, Donna DeCostanzo, Richard

         23  Colon, my own Chief of Staff, Peter Washburn

         24  (phonetic), the good folks from DEP who are with us

         25  here today; Chris Manning from the Mayor's Office
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          2  who always helps us get these hearings going. It's a

          3  pleasure to see the folks from DEP after a long and

          4  busy summer. Now we are back to the business of the

          5  Committee. It's good to start up and very happy and

          6  pleased to have my friend, Doug Greeley from DEP who

          7  will I'm sure grace us with some comprehensive

          8  testimony on this issue.

          9                 We did have a previous hearing on

         10  this issue once upon a time. We thought it was high

         11  time that we revisit it. I'll ask Donna DeCostanzo,

         12  the Counsel to the Committee to give the oath and

         13  then you can make your statement and I'll ask

         14  questions. Thank you.

         15                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Please

         16  raise your right hand. In the testimony that you are

         17  about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the

         18  truth, the whole truth, and nothing but the truth?

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: I do.

         20                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Doug.

         22  Good to see you and what do you got?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Good

         24  morning, Mr. Chairman and members of the Committee.

         25  My name is Douglas Greeley. I'm Deputy Commissioner
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          2  for the Department of Environmental Protection's

          3  Borough of Water and Sewer Operations. On behalf of

          4  Commissioner Lloyd, thank you for the opportunity to

          5  present testimony in support of Intro 474, which is

          6  sponsored by Council Member Gennaro at the

          7  Administration's request.

          8                 Now that you have summarized the

          9  bill, I don't feel a need to testify. You did a

         10  pretty complete job of it. I'd also like to throw in

         11  a little bit of a historical lesson. In olden days,

         12  prior to 1965, the Highway Department and the Sewer

         13  Department were under the aegis of the borough

         14  presidents. The Water Department, so to speak, was

         15  its own entity and with subsequent reorganizations,

         16  we've been trying to weld the Water and the Sewer

         17  Operation into one package. That is why there has

         18  been a disparity between the water main regs and

         19  sewer regs and we're working to try standardize

         20  those which one small effort is this bill.

         21                 The Department appreciates the

         22  Committee's interest in this legislation and I'm

         23  hopeful that the Committee will consider it

         24  favorably. In my testimony this morning, I will

         25  summarize the background and the purpose of the
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          2  legislation and in the course of doing so, I hope to

          3  communicate why I think this legislation will have a

          4  favorable impact on the system of potable water

          5  delivery in New York City while improving

          6  coordination with the private development industry.

          7                 As the Committee is undoubtedly

          8  aware, there remain areas of the City that are not

          9  yet served by DEP operated water and sewer systems.

         10  In these areas, private developers may propose to

         11  connect their new projects to the nearest water and

         12  sewer mains by constructing, at their own expense,

         13  water and sewer lines underneath mapped City

         14  streets. These water and sewer pipes are referred to

         15  by City engineers and plan examiners as private

         16  water mains or private sewers. They differ from the

         17  pipes within a large private development, such as

         18  Co- op City or Stuyvesant Town, which provide water

         19  and sewer service between buildings inside private

         20  property and these pipes are considered by City

         21  engineers as internal plumbing and they would not be

         22  affected by this legislation. They are regulated by

         23  the Department of Buildings.

         24                 In an effort to create clearer and

         25  more enforceable requirements and eliminate the
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          2  possibility of misinterpretation, DEP, in

          3  consultation with representatives of engineering

          4  firms, developers, architects and plumbers, created

          5  a draft set of rules governing the construction of

          6  private -- I'm sorry, I'll correct that. It's a set

          7  of rules, governing the construction of private

          8  sewer mains in 1999. These rules are now Chapter 23

          9  of Title 15 of the Rules Compilation of the City of

         10  New York, usually known as RCNY.

         11                 Unfortunately, sections 24- 507 and

         12  24- 508 of the Administrative Code, which authorized

         13  the creation of the private sewer main rules, did

         14  not grant similar authority in the area of private

         15  water mains. The legislation before you today

         16  explicitly gives DEP the authority to promulgate

         17  private water main rules. DEP staff have already

         18  begun drafting these rules and these rules have

         19  become industry practice to a significant degree.

         20  Obviously, the rules cannot be enforced and are not

         21  binding upon any party until and unless authorizing

         22  legislation such as Intro 474 is enacted.

         23                 To be clear, DEP staff began the

         24  rulemaking process, again in consultation with

         25  representatives of the regulated community, some
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          2  years ago and have a draft complete and ready to go.

          3  Similar to rules governing the construction of

          4  private sewers, the draft private water main rules

          5  codify definitions, standards, insurance and bonding

          6  requirements, plan approval processes and

          7  construction procedures.

          8                 Although, I will not go into the

          9  legislation provision by provision in my prepared

         10  remarks, I would like to draw your attention to one

         11  feature of the bill that might require some

         12  explanation. Paragraph (g) of the bill provides for

         13  the water main to remain the private property of the

         14  parties who paid for its construction until the

         15  earlier of seven years elapsing, or at such time

         16  that the property owners abutting the water main

         17  have paid for its construction. After either of

         18  those events occurs, the ownership of the water main

         19  will vest with the City.

         20                 The vesting procedure described in

         21  24- 309.1 (g) mirrors the existing Administrative

         22  Code provision applicable to private sewer mains.

         23  Authorizing the City to take ownership of the

         24  private sewers and water mains after seven years is

         25  part of a long- term City policy not to permit the
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          2  creation of private water main or sewer systems in

          3  the public streets. Allowing an interval of seven

          4  years before the City takes title to a private water

          5  or sewer main gives the building time to re- coup

          6  the costs of constructing the private water or sewer

          7  main. By re- creating in Intro 474 vesting

          8  procedures created for the private sewer mains, DEP

          9  is not creating new policy but extending existing

         10  policy to apply to private water mains.

         11                 In the absence of a codified policy,

         12  builders and developers have a certain discretion

         13  with respect to constructing extensions of the

         14  City's potable water main system. Although builders

         15  and developers generally follow DEP guidance when it

         16  comes to private water mains, from my standpoint is

         17  clearly undesirable for this activity to remain

         18  unregulated. Having uniform standards for the

         19  private construction of and connection to the water

         20  and sewer supply enables DEP to maintain the

         21  integrity of such systems. Therefore, I hope that

         22  the Committee will consider this legislation

         23  favorably.

         24                 On behalf of myself and Commissioner

         25  Lloyd, thank you for this opportunity to present
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          2  testimony. I'd be happy to answer any questions the

          3  Council might have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Doug.

          5  Let me just pose a few questions. Just as I go

          6  through your statement, as you say this bill only

          7  would focus on those private water mains that are

          8  under mapped City streets. Any of the piping or

          9  whatever that is within any large private

         10  development is looked upon as internal plumbing and

         11  wouldn't be affected by this.

         12

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         14  correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: How much of this

         16  activity is going on and how does it come about that

         17  someone has the need to build some kind of water

         18  main connection under mapped City streets to hook

         19  into the City system? Is a common occurrence, does

         20  it happen all the time or is it --

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: It's

         22  prevalent in Staten Island where you would have

         23  maybe a mapped City street that is not fully built.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Oh, I see.

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: And a
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          2  builder would take title to the property and develop

          3  town homes or --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: --

          6  Something like that.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: And it is at the

          8  end of some road some place and he's got to hook up

          9  to the nearest City main and water and sewer main.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         11  correct. And he may have to get the infrastructure

         12  passed property that is owned by others so that he

         13  could develop his property. In a case like that, if

         14  the property owned by others comes to be developed,

         15  that developer could plug in to the infrastructure

         16  that the first developer installed --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: -- As

         19  long as there is a cost allocation so that the

         20  second developer pays his fair share of the plug in.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right.

         22                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: It's not

         23  real prevalent, but it does happen.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But also the

         25  issue is that when someone puts piping in a water
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          2  mains under mapped City streets and other people

          3  will be tapping into it and also under the current

          4  paradigm, does that ultimately become City property

          5  now?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Yes, it

          7  does.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: It does?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: It does.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Because I

         11  thought that was in the bill here that it says that

         12  that becomes City property. It's only now does this

         13  bill make such private water mains ultimately become

         14  City property. But you're saying that happens now

         15  anyway?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That

         17  happens with the private sewers. They are vested by

         18  the City after seven years or after the sewer is

         19  fully connected and there will be no further build

         20  out. That tells the City that it has been maximized

         21  and now we have maintenance responsibility.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: That's for the

         23  sewer main though?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         25  correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: But not for the

          3  water main?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Not for

          5  the water main.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So the water

          7  main even though it is still under mapped City

          8  streets, under the current scheme, it is still this

          9  pipe that was put in the ground by ABC Developer

         10  which people are continuing to tap into. Does that

         11  developer maintain sort of ongoing maintenance

         12  responsibility for that?

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: He's

         14  responsible too, certainly. And for the period of

         15  seven years or until the water main is fully tapped

         16  into. It is somewhat unwieldy from my stand point

         17  having to maintain the system. Where are you going

         18  to find a developer at 1:00 in the morning if there

         19  is a bad water leak. We will maintain it certainly

         20  in the absence because it is a public health or fire

         21  protection issue.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Because

         23  now it doesn't as though for water mains and I'm

         24  kind of making the case for the bill, is that right

         25  now it doesn't seem that there is any legal
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          2  mechanism by which this private water main becomes

          3  City property until we do this bill that says after

          4  seven years it will become City property.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

          6  correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Let's just say

          8  we do this bill and then it becomes law and then

          9  every incident of this from here forward, new

         10  private water mains which were put in under this

         11  bill once we pass it or whatever, would become under

         12  the control of DEP and would be ultimately DEP

         13  property. How about all those that are already in

         14  the ground? Would this bill in anyway cover them or

         15  would they ultimately become City property the ones

         16  that were built prior to this bill becoming law?

         17  Like what is the fate of those water lines?

         18                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Just

         19  speaking from the hip, I believe it would be

         20  grandfathered. The odds are that we're maintaining

         21  them now anyway.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. Because

         23  as a practical matter, DEP has got a responsibility

         24  to citizens of the people in New York that receive

         25  water. So you're saying as a practical matter, the
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          2  City would maintain those and upkeep those as if

          3  they were their own?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

          5  correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: After

          8  seven years, but we do if there is a maintenance

          9  issue, we will come in before that. What this bill

         10  would give us control of is we would be able to

         11  regulate the specification of the materials that are

         12  used and we would also codify maintenance bonds to

         13  developers so that in the event something did go

         14  wrong and the City was called in to maintain it

         15  before the City vested the water main, we would have

         16  something that we could back charge or recoup our

         17  cost. This bill would ensure that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I guess there is

         19  an attempt on the part of DEP for these private

         20  water main owners and operators to do some of the

         21  maintenance and to keep them in good working order

         22  or they have some responsibility to do that now. You

         23  try to get them to be good servicers or whatever of

         24  their equipment to the extent that they have the

         25  ability to make them behave that way. I know
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          2  ultimately what you are looking for is this bill

          3  that would codify everything, get everything squared

          4  away. I'm just kind of looking back a little bit at

          5  that fleet of private water mains that are out there

          6  now and what kind of what happens with those.

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Once

          8  again, they will maintain for a period of seven

          9  years. Generally, there is a home owner's

         10  association that has responsibility for maintenance.

         11  Speaking from an operational standpoint, it's

         12  unwieldy at 1:00 in the morning or if they have no

         13  experience in calling for a private water main

         14  contractor and generally the City will come in and

         15  provide the first line of maintenance or repair to

         16  stabilize the situation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Question from

         18  our finance people, would the passage of this bill

         19  require additional DEP staff or DEP financial

         20  resources?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: I don't

         22  perceive that it would. It just becomes part of the

         23  infrastructure at work.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. I guess

         25  your previous reference to Section 24- 507 and 508
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          2  of the Administrative Code not include water mains,

          3  was there a specific issue or concern or what is the

          4  reason that they were left out when the sewer main

          5  was done?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Once

          7  again, I am not facile with regulations and

          8  histories, et cetera. It is my belief though that

          9  they were drafted around 1963 when in fact sewers

         10  and water were not joined together.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. With

         12  regard to and I think this is one of the issues that

         13  is spoken to by the bill, with regard with the

         14  standards that are used now for the construction of

         15  private water mains, is there an industry standard

         16  for private water main construction? Or are the

         17  people that are doing this construction generally

         18  adhering to any kind of specifications or do they

         19  get permits from you in order to do this?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: They are

         21  issued site connection permits to connect to the

         22  infrastructure systems as they exist. In the absence

         23  of any regulations, they are following our standard

         24  water main and sewer specifications. There has been

         25  an informal agreement for many years in this area.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Right. But

          3  technically they don't have to which is one of the

          4  reasons for the bill.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY:

          6  Technically, they don't have too. There are some

          7  standards that they would have to follow, but these

          8  just once again, these codify it and everybody can

          9  follow the same.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I recognize

         11  Council Member Koppell for questions.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It is a

         13  little particular this regimen because you have the

         14  private party building a facility and then the City

         15  taking it over without compensating the private

         16  party. And I'm just curious to understand what it's

         17  happened until now. When a private developer builds

         18  one of these water mains under a City street, I

         19  assume they need to get a permit.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         21  correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: When they get

         23  that permit, don't they commit to certain

         24  requirements?

         25                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: They do.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: It seems to

          3  me that there is no reason why you couldn't say in

          4  order to get the permit, you have to meet certain

          5  specifications. Right?

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

          7  correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: That doesn't

          9  seem to be a good particularly important rationale

         10  for the bill to require them to meet certain

         11  specifications. What concerns me a little bit, I

         12  guess, to put the cards on the table as I think

         13  about this and I haven't given a lot thought, Mr.

         14  Chairman, before this morning, aren't we kind of

         15  taking these developers off the hook with this

         16  legislation? We're saying to them they don't need to

         17  maintain these. They built them, but they don't need

         18  to maintain them. The City is going to take over the

         19  maintenance of these. Maybe that's a good idea, but

         20  it strikes me that this legislation is really more

         21  for facilitating things for the developer or the

         22  home owner's association if that is what ultimately

         23  is going to happen here rather than really

         24  accommodating the City. Because the City could

         25  require specifications for mains under its streets.
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          2  Right?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

          4  correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: You already

          6  said that. I'm just wondering what's really behind

          7  this. Is it that the private people can't maintain

          8  them appropriately?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: It's not

         10  that the private people can't maintain them. The

         11  demand for housing or development in New York City

         12  can easily out paces the City's ability to

         13  rationally provide infrastructure to its customers.

         14  The developers in order to provide the housing that

         15  people demand are providing the infrastructure to

         16  service those homes right now because they want to

         17  be in business and make money and provide the homes

         18  to people that are demanding it. It's kind of an

         19  offset for the City's inability to keep pace with

         20  the private development community. But over time, it

         21  becomes unwieldy for many different people to be

         22  maintaining their own little sections of an

         23  infrastructure system. It makes more sense for the

         24  Department to do it. I don't believe we are letting

         25  them off the hook.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Only letting

          3  them off the hook if they have an ongoing obligation

          4  to maintain those lines. In a sense, we're taking

          5  that obligation away from them.

          6                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Over a

          7  period --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: We're

          9  relieving them of that obligation.

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Over a

         11  period of seven years.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: And then they

         13  are not charged anything special. They just pay the

         14  regular water and sewer rates that everybody pays.

         15  Right?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         17  correct.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: They don't

         19  pay any special fee after the City assumes the

         20  maintenance responsibility.

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: No.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Essentially,

         23  what you are saying is that we are allowing them to

         24  build it because the City doesn't have the resources

         25  to build it.
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          2                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: In a

          3  fashion that allows us to provide infrastructure

          4  service to any developer that wants to build, the

          5  City is more methodical. There is a rational plan to

          6  build out so that everybody along the way gets

          7  connected. We don't have the ability to bring the

          8  infrastructure over here and bring the

          9  infrastructure over there. We have to think about

         10  how to get large trunk sewers into a community so

         11  that everybody gets serviced. This is an effort by

         12  which development can proceed without the Department

         13  having to spend a lot more money to try to keep up

         14  with every potential developer that wants to build

         15  in the City.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: If the City

         17  built the main for the developer, they would then be

         18  assessed a particular charge? I know when the City

         19  builds a new sewer, they assess the property owners.

         20  Correct?

         21                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: That's

         22  part of the water and sewer bill now. The local

         23  assessments have not gone --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No. There are

         25  special assessments when the City builds a new
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          2  sewer, are there not?

          3                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: The

          4  property owners are directed to connect to the sewer

          5  system, but there is no local assessment the way

          6  there used to be.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Oh, is that

          8  right?

          9                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: It's

         10  part of DEP's capital program.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: But it used

         12  to be, I know that --

         13                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Used to

         14  be --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: No more?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: -- Many

         17  years ago. No longer.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: I see. That's

         19  interesting. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you,

         21  Council Member Koppell. We have one additional party

         22  that's going to be testifying on the bill today.

         23  We've heard few parties have testified from the

         24  private sector and I guess although, I'll get a

         25  better read on this from the next witness, Doug what
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          2  is your sort of sense where the private sector is on

          3  this proposal? I know that you have a lot of

          4  dealings with various developers and people who are

          5  kind of in the business. Of course, the next witness

          6  will be speaking on behalf of the private sector.

          7  But I'm just curious as to what your sense is of

          8  where the building community and private developing

          9  community is with respect to this proposal?

         10                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: We

         11  believe they support it. Generally, they have all

         12  been informally compliant with this gentle person's

         13  agreement for many years. We believe they generally

         14  support it.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Okay. Good. Let

         16  me see if I have any more things I want to clarify

         17  before I let you go. I think we're good. Doug, thank

         18  you very much for being here today. I appreciate it.

         19  Good to hear your views and nice to see you.

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER GREELEY: Nice to

         21  see you too. Thank you very much.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: You bet. Next

         23  witness, another good friend and former colleague at

         24  the Council, Robert Altman from Szold & Brandwen

         25  representing the Building Industry Association of
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          2  New York.

          3                 MR. ALTMAN: Good morning. My name is

          4  Robert Altman --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Bob, hang on one

          6  second. We've been joined by Council Member Bill

          7  DeBlasio from Brooklyn. Good to see you, Bill. Donna

          8  will give the oath and then you can proceed with

          9  your good testimony.

         10                 COUNSEL TO THE COMMITTEE: Please

         11  raise your right hand. The testimony that you are

         12  about to give, do you swear or affirm to tell the

         13  truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth?

         14                 MR. ALTMAN: I do.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Bob.

         16  Good to see you as always.

         17                 MR. ALTMAN: Good to see you, Council

         18  Member.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: We're also

         20  joined by Council Member Peter Vallone, Jr., also a

         21  good member of this Committee. Bob, please.

         22                 MR. ALTMAN: Good morning. My name is

         23  Robert Altman and I am the Legislative Consultant to

         24  the Building Industry Association of New York City.

         25  I am here to testify today in cautious opposition to
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          2  Intro No. 474. I would like to point out that the

          3  Building Industry Association of New York City

          4  represents the builders in Staten Island and what we

          5  call low- rise Brooklyn as a chapter of the New York

          6  State Builders Association.

          7                 I say cautious opposition only

          8  because the Association believes that this bill can

          9  be salvaged and wishes to discuss it further with

         10  the Department of Environmental Protection.

         11  Leadership of the Building Association has spoken

         12  briefly with leadership from DEP and directly

         13  expressed its concerns regarding the bill. Mainly,

         14  the Association has some concerns that certain parts

         15  of the bill are vague and thus, we are concerned

         16  regarding how the Department will implement these

         17  measures Therefore, we are asking to meet with DEP

         18  so we can discuss their thinking behind the bill and

         19  determine whether the legislation can be salvaged.

         20                 I'd like to bring up here that there

         21  were certain points that were raised by the Deputy

         22  Commissioner, namely that there has been a

         23  gentlemen's agreement and that is somewhat the case

         24  and the question is from an Association standpoint

         25  is one, is the gentlemen agreement being changed?
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          2  And two, we actually haven't seen the regulations

          3  that he discussed that have already been drafted and

          4  that may go a large way to assuaging the fears of

          5  the Association. In that respect, this may be a

          6  quick set of meetings or longer set of meetings, but

          7  we will see after we get the bigger picture.

          8                 Generally, we wish to ensure a smooth

          9  process that will guarantee that the new legislation

         10  does not become a new impediment to the construction

         11  process and make the cost of housing go up. As

         12  written, the Building Industry leadership believes

         13  that the foregoing is the absolute result. We're

         14  equally unsure whether the bill will over complicate

         15  the existing process and substantially lengthen it,

         16  without any benefit. We, therefore, must oppose the

         17  legislation as proposed, but we are guardedly

         18  optimistic that with further consultation with the

         19  Department, it can be improved and saved. Thank you

         20  for your consideration.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Thank you, Bob.

         22  I guess my observation and I want to speak not only

         23  to you but representatives of DEP and the Mayor's

         24  Office that are here. I've got certainly great

         25  respect for the builders and what they do and the
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          2  deadlines that they have to meet and everything that

          3  they have to do to run a successful enterprise and

          4  provide housing which is most needed in this City. I

          5  have great respect for the builders. I also have

          6  great respect for DEP and what they are trying to do

          7  in trying to get things standardized to go beyond

          8  just this kind of gentle person's agreement or

          9  whatever. I think that your proposal is extremely

         10  reasonable in that you want more discussions with

         11  DEP.

         12                 You want the ability to look at the

         13  regulations which the Deputy Commissioner testified

         14  were ready to go. I think I would be very much

         15  inclined in that if DEP and the builders can come to

         16  some meeting of the minds, I would be more than

         17  happy to pass this legislation in a minute. That's

         18  what I would ask the Administration and DEP to do

         19  because I want to be helpful as well and I can't

         20  think of anything more productive than getting DEP

         21  as the regulator and the regulated community which

         22  would be you and your members together on a bill

         23  that makes sense.

         24                 I don't think there is a big chasm

         25  here that has to be bridged. I think that it is more
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          2  an information --

          3                 MR. ALTMAN: Exchange.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Exchange and

          5  I think if we had everyone feeling comfortable then

          6  we could all just proceed and do this. How does that

          7  sound?

          8                 MR. ALTMAN: That sounds excellent.

          9  I'd also like to note that the Queens and Bronx

         10  Builders Association which represents Queens and

         11  Bronx also would like to meet with DEP on this. They

         12  at this point in time have no comment on the bill

         13  except that the person in charge of this issue for

         14  Queens did say that they were defer at this stage to

         15  the judgment of the person on Staten Island. It's

         16  just that I would like to have all the Associations.

         17  It primarily affects those four boroughs. It does

         18  affect a lot of Staten Island. It affects certain

         19  parts of Queens that are facing a growth that

         20  previously had not been well developed. That's

         21  another thing that we just have it and if everybody

         22  agrees at that point in time, then we're not having

         23  one Association saying okay and the other

         24  Association not feeling left out.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: I would just say

                                                            31

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  for ease of making this all happening, would you be

          3  able to orchestrate --

          4                 MR. ALTMAN: Yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- All the

          6  various entities?

          7                 MR. ALTMAN: Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: So that DEP

          9  doesn't have to --

         10                 MR. ALTMAN: That's fine. I represent

         11  both Associations.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Do different

         13  things. It would be nice if we could just kind of

         14  move this forward in an orderly way and get the

         15  meetings out of the way and it would be my hope with

         16  maybe modest changes or maybe not even changes, more

         17  in the way of clarifications to some of your

         18  concerns, then we can move forward and get this

         19  done. This bill has been around for awhile and I

         20  would like to be helpful in standardizing things as

         21  long it made sense. It made sense with the community

         22  that was going to be regulated.

         23                 Counsel to the Committee makes a good

         24  point in that what right now the building community

         25  is operating under a power diem where for the sewers
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          2  there is a standardization or whatever. Is there any

          3  sort of difficulty with that power diem now that is

          4  causing difficulty? Because this would be like a

          5  mirror image of what's going on.

          6                 MR. ALTMAN: Generally, there is

          7  something of a mirror image going on right now and

          8  that's not where the objection lies. Our objection

          9  lies in the fact that we just don't know if

         10  something new is contemplated and the concern is

         11  making sure that if something is getting codified

         12  whether its in legislation or by rules that confirm

         13  to what we understand the process to be. And have a

         14  lot of sense and be understandable because we have a

         15  gentlemen's agreement now, whether it's in four

         16  months or four years and four months and

         17  Administrations changed, so we want to make sure its

         18  clear for everybody. And not only that, also staff

         19  changes and so we just want to make it clear for

         20  everybody.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: Sure. Certainly,

         22  we don't want to give any agency a blank check so to

         23  speak to have a lot of latitude in rule making. If

         24  there is anyway to put some of that into the body of

         25  the bill itself or whatever might make sense, we
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          2  would be open to that. I guess what I want to convey

          3  from this seat is that I would like to see the

          4  regulator and the regulated entity reach an

          5  agreement through these meetings and then we can

          6  just go and get this done. I think people on both

          7  sides are reasonable and I think with some

          8  clarifications or maybe some kind of assurances,

          9  there won't be latitude taken and rule making that

         10  would upset your industry. We could just do this and

         11  move on. That would be my --

         12                 MR. ALTMAN: I agree.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- Thoughts. I

         14  don't have any further questions, but I would ask

         15  the Administration and Mr. Altman to swap business

         16  cards right now and start this process so that we

         17  could move on. I want to thank you Bob for coming

         18  here --             MR. ALTMAN: Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO: -- In

         20  representing the industry. I would like to thank DEP

         21  once again for being here and also being patient

         22  with my consideration of the bill. It's a long time

         23  since we have had a hearing on this bill and I'm

         24  older now than I was back then. I have this sense of

         25  fleeting time. I wanted to move forward and get

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  things done. I was a lot younger when we took this

          3  one up. I just want to see if Council Member Vallone

          4  may want to weigh in. Okay. Council Member Vallone

          5  is satisfied. Donna, as always, has answered our

          6  questions. With no further witnesses waiting to be

          7  heard, this hearing is adjourned. Thank you all.

          8                 (Meeting adjourned at 11:10 a.m.)
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